
RFP 2017-0034 PCs and Peripherals 

Questions and Answers 

 

1. What processor is preferred? 

Answer: We require i7 for power desktop specification but all other configurations can be 
quoted with i5. 

2. Is Windows 10 needed? 

Answer: We are fully licensed for windows 10. 

3. Is Vpro needed? 

Answer: We are open to the prospect. 

4. Would you like a mechanical docking station or a USB based docking station? 

Answer: USB is preferred if possible. 

5. You have no MFG listed for all of the hardware except the Zero and Thin clients, where you have 
Lenovo as the MFG.  Does this mean that you only will accept Lenovo for these or can we craft a 
response with one MFG for all devices?  

Answer: Lenovo was listed as a manufacturer while we were testing the sheet and was left in 
for the Zero and Think client machines in error.  We are open to any suggested manufacturers 
for all products.   

6. Computer Specs, Column B. Please specify which CPU is required? (i3,i5, i7, etc.) 

Answer:  See answer to question #1. 

7. Please confirm you are Win 10 Pro ready for all PC configs? 

Answer: Yes. 

8.  Please confirm you do not need Intel vPro management on any PC? 

Answer: Please see #3. 

9. DVD- do you require ROM or RW? 

Answer: RW. 

10.  Is DisplayPort an acceptable alternative to HDMI? 

Answer: Yes. 

11. You’ve called for no keyboard on desktop reqs, please confirm and also confirm no mouse is 
needed? 



Answer:  Yes, that is correct.  Keyboard and mouse does not need to be included in quotes 
provided.   

12. Each Row calls for Option 1 & 2. Please specify what you require for each option? 

Answer:  You are free to only quote one option, but have the ability to submit up to two 
options for each spec.  Also, if providing an option you must include all information required 
for either purchase or lease but do not need to provide information for both purchase and 
lease.   

13. Do you have a form factor requirement for the desktops? 

Answer:  We do not have a form factor requirement.  Please provide your recommendation.   

14. Are install services required, and if so there is not spot in the cost matrix for them? 

Answer:  Install services are not required.  City of Pittsburgh staff will complete that work.   

15. Does the city want imaging/asset tagging onsite or offsite? 

Answer:   Offsite. 

16. The volume listed is low for the city user counts, how is the city procuring the rest of their client 
devices? 

Answer:  All PC hardware procurement for specs outlined in this RFP will be purchased under 
the resulting contract.  The volume listed in the RFP is our best estimate based on our 
knowledge of current inventory age and future employee needs.   

17.  Estimated annual quantities are listed – will these be rolling orders or in bulk? Will an appx 
order schedule or forecast be noted to the supplier of choice? 

Answer:  We will be making planned purchases to replace machines that are not Windows 10 
compatible.  Our intention is to submit bulk orders for these purchases and will work with the 
selected vendor to communicate an anticipated schedule in advance.  Other orders will be the 
result of individual departmental needs to accommodate new employees or replace failed 
equipment.  These requests will be submitted to the vendor on an as needed basis.   

18. Will docking stations be required for the laptops? If so, any preference? 

Answer:  Docking stations should not be quoted with the laptop bid prices.  We will purchase 
docking stations on an as needed basis based on the individual user needs.   

19. Revisions made to Appendix C. New Appendix C – Revision 1 posted with this Q&A addenda for 
review and use in final proposal response. 

Revisions: 

a. On the computer Specs tab, added a note to the Docking Station Field for Laptop and 
Slate Style Laptop “Your pricing should be without a docking station.” 

b. Add a note to column Y of the Computer Specs sheet:  “Assume that your lease price 
does not include Imaging or Asset Tagging.” 



c. For Zero Client with Integrated Display, changed the note under Optional Features to 
read:  “Please explain whether the model(s) you quoted will allow us to replace the 
display in the future without replacing the entire unit.” 

d. Removed the Lenovo text from the Zero/Thin Client options. Originally that was an 
example. Please quote any units that meet the specification. 

20. Which manufactures are you Self Service Maintainers with? 

Answer: None. 

21. The laptops and basic desktop, which CPU are you looking to purchase?  I3 or i5?  

Answer: Refer to answer for question #1.   

22. Will demo units be needed and by what date? 

Answer: Once final vendors are selected, the City may request demo units to assist with a final 
vendor selection decision.  We estimate that those demo units would need to be available 
beginning the week of November 13th. 

23. Appendix A is a sample contract for services.   The RFP and the SLA do not call for any services 
but rather are strictly for products.  Is there some other reason for that to be attached as it 
seems not to be applicable in this request? 

Answer: Appendix A will be the base document to work from for a Law department. The scope 
of services may be primarily for delivery of product but there are some services built in with 
that such as delivery response time expectations and the working relationship with the City 
departments. Please review Appendix A and list any areas of concern where your company 
would list an exception. Those exceptions should be listed in Tab F along with any other 
assumptions made to complete the proposal.  

24. As regards to the Lenovo clients, are you interested in a TIO or AIO configurations? 

Answer: Either/Both 

25. Is there an initial quantity to be ordered on any of the items? 

Answer: Please refer to the answer for question #17.  We will work with the selected vendor 
to determine a schedule for our proactive PC refresh orders.  

26. In regards to the Lenovo clients, Is there an existing Master Contract for the City and if so we 
would need to have you request that we be added to it or alternately provide us the contact 
information for the ISR (Inside Sales Representative) from Lenovo. 

Answer:  Lenovo was listed in the Cost Proposal worksheet as a manufacturer in error.  
Vendors are not required to quote Lenovo devices for any specifications.   

27. There is a Sample Professional Services Agreement attached to the RFP and referenced in 
Section 8.1.7. That agreement is specific to actual professional services, it does not appear to 
contain terms that relate to the sale of hardware and peripherals which is the focus of this RFP. 
In order to provide terms for the sale of products, may Respondents submit their own Master 



Product Purchase Agreement or related terms along with their response as a starting point for 
negotiations in case they are the winning bidder? 

Answer: Reference answer to #23.  

28. In Appendix C, under the Docking station column, docks are requested ‘by case’. Similarly, under 
the HDMI column, HDMI is requested ‘As Accessory’ for the Slate Style Laptop. Please clarify if 
docks and HDMI cords should be quoted for these respective sections.  

Answer: No, docks and HDMI cords should not be quoted for these specifications.  If these 
items are required, they will be ordered on a case by case basis.   

29. In Appendix C, Lenovo is mentioned specifically for the Zero Client and Thin Client make and 
model. Will alternative manufacturers be considered for this section, if proposed by a vendor?  

Answer: Lenovo was listed in the Cost Proposal worksheet as a manufacturer in error.  
Vendors are not required to quote Lenovo devices for any specifications.   

30. In Appendix C, the Slate Style Laptop mentions Surface Pro as the preferred model. Surface Pro 
configurations are available with 4GB RAM / 128 SSD or 8GB / 256 SSD. Will the 4GB / 128GB be 
an acceptable solution if proposed, or should vendors assume to quote the minimum 8GB / 256 
SSD configuration?  

Answer: The 4GB/ 128 GB option in this case would not be a suitable option for the City.  
Please ensure your proposals conform to the minimum thresholds outlined for each 
specification. 

31. The current industry standard recognized by the top three OEMs (Lenovo/HPI/DELL) for custom 
business class machines is 15 business days. With this in mind, would the city consider extending 
5-day timeframe outlined in the RFP? 

Answer:  We are interested in the best possible response time.  The City is willing to extend 
the timeframe if necessary.   

32. In regard to section 4.1.2 General Requirements bullet point 5 – what is the City looking for in a 
standard service level agreement at this time, and what components specifically would it like 
vendors to speak to in this requirement? 

Answer: The Service Level agreement should explain all of the basic information about how 
the City of Pittsburgh account will be serviced.  This includes but is not limited to:  how I&P 
staff will be able to contact the selected vendor for support; the support hours; issue 
classification definitions; turnaround time for issues reported by the City, and delivery time 
commitments for standard orders.   

33. Page 5 of the RFP states that the EORC submission deadline is December 11th. Is this to say that 
the EORC Form (Appendix B) is not due with the rest of the proposal on 11/3, but on 12/11? 

Answer:  The EORC form is due along with all of the other proposal materials on November 
3rd.  The December 11th date is an internal date that City staff will need to meet.   



34. In the Basic and Power desktop configurations in Appendix C you have a requirement, “a 
discrete graphics capable of multiple monitor support”, Intel’s integrated GPU’s support a max 
of 3 monitors and our question is what is the max quantity of monitors that you will need to 
support with these desktops?   

Answer: 3 

35. If the quantity is less than or equal to 3 monitors, then can the response include the standard 
Intel integrated GPU’s and not include the discrete graphics card?  (this will significantly lower 
the pricing for you if so) 

Answer: For the Power Desktop configuration, the standard Intel integrated GPUs would not 
be sufficient.  For that specification we require a discrete graphics card 

 

 


